
Police and Crime Panel

Date Monday 22 October 2018
Time 10.00 am (or immediately following completion of the 

Confirmation Hearing, whichever is the later)
Venue Committee Room 1A - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

[Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend.
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman’s 

agreement]

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Substitute Members  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2018  (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Declarations of interest, if any  

5. Recent Media Activity - Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and 
Victims' Commissioner  (Pages 7 - 9)

6. Fair Funding - Campaign Activity - Verbal Update of the Office of the 
Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner  

7. 2018/19 Quarter 1 Performance Report - Report of the Office of the 
Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner  (Pages 11 - 54)

8. Focused Report on Police, Crime and Victims' Plan Outcomes - 
Outcome 1: 'Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced - Report of 
the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner  (Pages 55 - 
66)

9. Commissioning Update - Report of Police, Crime and Victims' 
Commissioner  (Pages 67 - 69)



10. Appointment of Independent Co-opted Members - Joint Report of 
Lorraine O'Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships and 
Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Durham County 
Council  (Pages 71 - 74)

11. PCVC Decision Records - Report of Police, Crime and Victims' 
Commissioner  (Pages 75 - 78)

12. Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

13. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 
discussion of items containing exempt information.  

Part B

Items during which it is considered the meeting will not be open to the 
public (consideration of exempt or confidential information)

14. Concerning a complaint about the Police, Crime and Victims’ 
Commissioner - Report of Monitoring Officer, Durham County Council  
(Pages 79 - 120)

15. Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Helen Lynch
Monitoring Officer

County Hall
Durham
12 October 2018

To: The Members of the Police and Crime Panel

Durham County Council
Councillors D Boyes, P Brookes, P Crathorne, L Hovvels, J Nicholson, 
A Savory and M Simmons

Darlington Borough Council
Councillors H Crumbie, B Jones and M Knowles

Independent Co-opted Members
Mr N J H Cooke and Mr D K G Dodwell

Contact: Ian Croft Tel: 03000 269702



DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Police and Crime Panel held in Committee Room 1A - County Hall, 
Durham on Friday 29 June 2018 at 2.00 pm

Present:

Durham County Council:
Councillors D Boyes, P Crathorne, L Hovvels, J Nicholson, A Savory, M Simmons and 
H Smith

Darlington Borough Council:
Councillors B Jones and M Knowles

Independent Co-opted Members:
Mr N J H Cooke and Mr D K G Dodwell

1 Election of Chairman 

Moved by Mr Dodwell, Seconded by Councillor Jones and 

Resolved:
That Councillor L Hovvels be elected Chairman of the Panel for the ensuing year.

Councillor L Hovvels in the Chair

2 Election of Vice-Chairman 

Moved by Mr Dodwell, Seconded by Mr Cooke and

Resolved:
That Councillor B Jones be elected Vice-Chairman of the Panel for the ensuing 
year.

3 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brookes and Harker.

4 Substitute Members 

Councillor H Smith as substitute for Councillor Brookes.

5 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 8 March 2018 were confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

Ron Hogg, PCVC informed the Panel of the following updates:

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 Alan Reiss, Chief of Staff had been appointed national chair of the 
Association of Policing and Crime Chief Executives;

 Provision of information to Parish Councils – at least 95% of Parish Clerks 
were aware of the arrangements for the provision of information and were 
happy with these arrangements;

 £4.2m of reserves had been allocated to pay off an historic debt;
 Crime data integrity – crimes which were of a more complex nature would be 

created as a skeleton crime within 231/2 hours, however the priority would 
remain to ensure the needs of the victim were met.

6 Declarations of interest

There were no declarations of interest.

7 Press, Broadcast Media and Social Media

The Panel received a presentation from J Carling, Head of Policy and 
Communications, Office of the PCVC on the importance of media coverage, recent 
coverage in the press and broadcast media and recent social media content and 
reach (for copy of slides see file of Minutes).

Councillor Hovvels thanked the Head of Policy and Communications for his 
presentation and stressed the importance of positive messages being put out into 
the media.  Councillor Boyes added that when the role of PCC was formed in 2012 
there had been a lot of caution and reservation about it, but Durham’s PCVC had 
been a good ambassador for the role.  Members of the Police and Crime Panel 
were supplied with copies of press releases made by the PCVC’s office and this 
was welcomed.

Councillor Jones informed the Panel he was pleased that Durham had a high profile 
Chief Constable and PCVC who maintained a media presence.

8 Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner's Annual Report

The Panel considered the Annual Report of the Police, Crime and Victims’ 
Commissioner for 2017-18 (for copy see file of Minutes).

The PCVC presented his report to the Panel which included key achievements, 
highlights of 2017-18, commissioning services, resources and looking ahead to 
2018-19.

The report demonstrated the work undertaken by the PCVCs office throughout the 
past year to deliver priority areas. The Panel noted the achievements highlighted 
within the report and that following HMICFRS inspections Durham Constabulary 
was rated ‘Outstanding’ for Effectiveness in reducing crime and keeping 
communities safe and for Efficiency.  In addition, the Panel acknowledged the 
achievements with support to victims, the launch of Local Criminal Justice Plan and 
proactive engagement with young people and communities.

Resolved:

Page 4



That the report be noted and that comments of the Panel be provided to the PCVC 
in follow-up correspondence.

9 Refreshed Police, Crime and Victims' Plan

The Panel considered a report of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner 
which presented the draft refreshed Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan for 2018-2021, 
in advance of its publication (for copy see file of Minutes).

Councillor Hovvels informed the PCVC that she was pleased that he was involved 
nationally in issues relating to mental health which had a big impact on many 
aspects of public services.  There were too many people in prisons who had mental 
health problems.

Councillor Smith referred to the figures quoted for women’s re-offending rates and 
those in prison for short sentences and asked whether there were any women’s 
centres in Durham.  The PCVC replied that developments around this were 
ongoing.

Resolved:
That the report be noted

10 Crime Statistics

The Panel considered a report of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner 
which provided an update on recorded crime statistics and solved rates (for copy 
see file of Minutes).

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

11 Quarter 4 2017/18 Performance Report

The Panel received a presentation from the PCVC on the Quarter 4 public 
performance report which contained key performance data for the headline 
measures of victim based crime, public confidence and victim satisfaction and 
performance information on each aspect of the current Police, Crime and Victims’ 
Plan.

Councillor Boyes referred to the reduction in knife crime in Glasgow which had used 
a lot of wrap around services involving partner agencies.  It was essential for 
partner agencies to be fully involved in such initiatives to ensure perspective 
offenders were targeted and the initiative be a success.

The Police and Crime Commissioner informed the Panel that there was still work to 
be done with partners before effective delivery could be achieved.  He added that 
he would be travelling to Cardiff to consider what could be learned from the Cardiff 
model, which was a way of preventing violence, in which data from hospitals was 
shared with the police and local authorities.

Page 5



Councillor Hovvels informed the meeting that a lot of work was already ongoing with 
partners including the County Council, Fire and Health and that this was work in 
progress.

Resolved:
That the report be noted.

12 Police and Crime Panel Work Programme 2018/19

The Panel considered a report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships, 
Durham County Council which sought agreement to the Panel’s Work Programme 
for 2018/19 (for report see file of Minutes).

Mr Cooke referred to the previously mentioned visit of Panel Members to the 
professional crime agency which had been previously mentioned.  The PCVC 
replied that work on this was ongoing.

Resolved:
That the Work Programme for 2018/19 be approved.

13 Commissioning in 2018-19

The Panel considered a report of the Head of Governance and Commissioning 
which provided an update on funding and commissioning activities for the financial 
year 2018/19 and the publication of the OPCVC Commissioning Strategy (for copy 
see file of Minutes).

Councillor Hovvels informed the Panel that the Commissioning Strategy would give 
greater clarity of who partner agencies were and would also increase the 
opportunity for partners to make plans.

Resolved:
That the report and Commissioning Strategy be approved.

14 PCVC Decision Records

The Panel noted a report of the Chief of Staff, Office of the Police, Crime and 
Victims’ Commissioner which provided an update on the PCVCs decision register 
since the last meeting and forward plan (for copy see file of Minutes).

15 State of Policing: The Annual Assessment of Policing in England and Wales 
2017 - HMICFRS

The Panel noted a report of the Chief of Staff, Office of the Police, Crime and 
Victims’ Commissioner which provided details of the central points of the ‘State of 
Policing: The Annual Assessment of Policing in England and Wales 2017’ which 
was published on 12 June 2018 (for copy see file of Minutes).

Page 6



Item No. 
Police and Crime Panel

22 October 2018

Recent media activity

Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

1. Purpose

At the Panel’s Development Session in April, there was discussion about coverage in the press of the 
work of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner, and Durham Constabulary. A commitment was 
made to update the Panel about key press activity at each Panel meeting. This paper provides an 
update covering the period since the previous meeting.

2. Top stories in the press and broadcast media

Press coverage since the last meeting has included:

- Launch of Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan
- Police funding – including the case for greater funding from the Chief Superintendents’ 

Association, and other PCCs
- Debate about the role of PCCs, including from National Police Chiefs Council
- Appointment of new Victims Liaison Officer in Durham
- Possible consequences for the Police of Brexit – including possible civil disorder and rise in hate 

crime
- Visit of John Healey MP to Wheatley Hill and Ferryhill, with Phil Wilson MP, to review housing 

conditions
- Drugs:

o Testing at festivals and public events
o Legalisation of cannabis for medical purposes; and decriminalisation
o Cannabis clubs
o Durham Constabulary to introduce naloxone into custody suites
o Injectable opioid treatment
o Police leading the campaign to reform drug policy

- Superheroes event, on 28 October

3. Social media activity
- 7000 followers on Twitter
- 4600 followers on Facebook

Top tweets:

o Home Secretary visits Durham Constabulary
o Durham Constabulary plans to use naloxone in custody suites

Top Facebook posts:

o Home Secretary visits Durham Constabulary
o Bikewise promotion 

4. Columns
Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Monthly columns in the Teesdale Mercury, Weardale Gazette and the Durham Times and 
Advertiser series, covering:

o Hate Crime 
o New Police, Crime and Victims’ plan
o Rural statement
o Cycle safety

5. Recommendations

Panel Members are recommended to note the information contained in this report.

Jon Carling 
Head of Policy and Communications

Page 8



Appendix 1:  Risks and Implications

Finance
None
Staffing
None
Equality and Diversity
None
Accommodation
None
Crime and Disorder
None
Children's Act 2004
None
Stakeholder/Community Engagement
None
Environment
None
Collaboration and Partnerships
None
Value for Money and Productivity
None
Potential Impact on Police and Crime Plan Priorities
Positive coverage of activity will help to boost confidence in policing.
Commissioning
None
Other risks
None

Contact Officer: Jon Carling
Job Title: Head of Policy and Communications
Telephone: 0191 3752001
Email: jon.carling@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 

Page 9

mailto:jon.carling@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2

Item No. XX

Police and Crime Panel

22 October 2018

2018/19 Quarter 1 Performance Report: Covering Paper

Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

Purpose

1. To introduce the 2018/19 Quarter 1 Public Performance Report and explain its new format.

Background

2. The Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner (PCVC) has traditionally presented the quarterly public 
performance report at the meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.

3. The report has been changed to reflect the structure of the latest Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan. The Plan, 
then, details four outcomes under which sit eight Key Performance Questions (KPQs) – and cutting across all 
of these are twelve priority areas.

Report Structure

4. This quarter’s report focuses on Outcomes 1 and 2 of the plan (thus, on KPQs 1-4). Next quarter’s report will, 
accordingly, focus on Outcomes 3 and 4 (KPQs 5-8); and subsequent reports will repeat this pattern.

5. The reason for reporting on four KPQs each quarter is that it allows the report greater scope for highlighting 
a number of indicators for each KPQ – and enables a better quality of analysis by focusing on fewer questions 
each time. This in itself allows a more holistically minded assessment of each key question, and six months 
between updates also gives time for meaningful movement.

6. The report will undoubtedly continue to develop as the most suitable information and Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) are identified to answer parts of each KPQ in different ways. Indeed, where the report cannot 
satisfactorily answer a question, it will state so – and it will, further, detail how the Office will go about working 
to determine fuller answers to a question in a future report.

Recommendation

7. That the Panel note the contents of the report and seek any relevant points of clarification.

Ron Hogg

Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 of 2

Appendix 1: Risks and Implications

Finance

N/A

Staffing

N/A

Equality and Diversity

N/A

Accommodation

N/A

Crime and Disorder

N/A

Children’s Act 2004

N/A

Stakeholder/Community Engagement

N/A

Environment

N/A

Collaboration and Partnerships

N/A

Value for Money and Productivity

N/A

Potential Impact on Police and Crime Plan Priorities

Highlights performance in relation to Outcomes 1 and 2 of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan.

Commissioning

N/A

Other Risks

N/A

Contact Officer: Jacob Cain
Job Title: Policy and Accountability Officer
Telephone: 0191 375 2164
Email: jacob.cain@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 

Page 12

mailto:jacob.cain@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


Quarterly Performance Report
Office of the Durham Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

Communities are safe 

and crime is reduced
Victims and the 

vulnerable feel 

supported

Reoffending is reduced 

and rehabilitation is 

improved

People have confidence 

in the police and the 

criminal justice system

KPQ1: How safe are our 

communities?

KPQ3: How well are victims 

supported to cope and 

recover, and engage in 

criminal justice processes?

KPQ5: How well are we 

reducing reoffending?

KPQ7: How confident are 

people in the Criminal 

Justice System?

KPQ2: How well are we 

preventing and reducing 

crime?

KPQ4: How well are 

vulnerable people 

supported?

KPQ6: How well are we 

rehabilitating people who 

have offended?

KPQ8: How confident are 

people in the police?

1

P
age 13



Communities are safe and crime is reduced Victims and the vulnerable feel supported

KPQ1: How safe are our communities? KPQ3: How well are victims supported to cope and 

recover, and engage in criminal justice processes?

KPQ2: How well are we preventing and reducing 

crime?

KPQ4: How well are vulnerable people supported?

2

Quarterly Performance Report
Quarter 1 – 2018/19

This quarterly report will focus on the first two outcomes of my Plan.

P
age 14



3

This page summarises some of the headline bullet points from each Key Performance Question (KPQ).

KPQ1 KPQ2

KPQ3 KPQ4

Quarterly Performance Report
Quarter 1 – 2018/19

• The rate per 1000 population of police recorded Anti-Social

Behaviour (ASB) has fallen across most of the force area

(comparing Q1 2016-17 with Q1 2017-18)

• Victim satisfaction with response times is stable, ranging

between 82-86% over the past several quarters

• Risk of household crime remains in line with or is lower

(taking confidence intervals into consideration) than the

national average

• Police recorded crime rises are driven by changes to

recording practices, increased reporting, and – also – actual

rises in offence categories such as theft offences (something

the Constabulary continues to address and that is also seen

nationally)

• Durham’s ‘solved rate’ for all crime stands at 25% compared

with 17% for England and Wales (twelve months to March

2018)

• Victim satisfaction in the areas of ‘Follow Up’ and for

‘Actions Taken’ fell recently – work is in place to help address

this

• Wide range of services continue to support victims

• Rape Scrutiny Panel continues to meet and will publish a

2018 report

• The Street Triage Team supports Constabulary call-handlers

• VIP Navigator Service is established

• The Hate Crime Action Group is developing an action plan to

be implemented over the next year

P
age 15



4

This dashboard shows some of the takeaways from each Key Performance Question (KPQ).

HMICFRS Inspections

Effectiveness: Outstanding

Efficiency: Outstanding

Legitimacy: Good

82%
Immediate Incident 

Response Pass Rate (Jan-

June 2018)

-16%
Change in Recorded Anti-

Social Behaviour (Q1 2016-

17 compared with Q1 2018-

19)

49%
Increase in Community 

Speed Watch Activities (Q1 

2016-17 compared with Q1 

2018-19)

10%
Feelings of Safety in Home 

After Dark (a bit/very 

unsafe) – Durham (National 

Rural Crime Survey 2018)

12%
Change in Reported Missing 

Persons (Q1 2017-18 

compared with Q1 2018-19)

KPQ1

46%
Increase in police recorded 

Violence Against the Person 

(2016-17 compared with 

2017-18)

25%
Resolved outcomes for 

2017-18 compared with 17% 

average for England and 

Wales

2%
Change in Violence Offences 

(from Crime Survey for 

England and Wales)

KPQ2

KPQ3 KPQ44607
Referrals to VCAS (2017-18)

656
Clients Supported by RSACC 

(2017-18)

84%
Victims Satisfied with 

‘Whole Experience’ (Q1 

2018-19)

‘Dot Peen’ 

Property 

Marking 

Machine

Rape Scrutiny 

Panel Report

36%
Rise in Mental Health 

Incidents Recorded by 

Durham Constabulary 

(comparing Q1 2017-18 

with Q1 2018-19)265
Number of People Trained 

as Community Peer Mentors 

(August 2018)

Quarterly Performance Report
Quarter 1 – 2018/19

Joint Hate Crime 

Action Plan

P
age 16



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

“Keeping communities safe is the essence of policing. The 

Chief Constable and I want the communities of County 

Durham and Darlington to be safe and feel safe.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

Key Performance Indicators PCV Plan Priority Links

Personal and Household Risk – Crime 

Survey for England and Wales

Crime Severity Score – Office for National 

Statistics

Response Times – Durham Constabulary

Anti-Social Behaviour Incidents – Police 

Recorded

Perceptions of Anti-Social Behaviour –

Crime Survey for England and Wales

Tackle and Prevent Anti-Social Behaviour

Fatal and Serious Road Traffic Casualties

Community Speed Watch Activities

Roads Policing Unit Campaigns

Improve Road Safety

Alcohol Related Incidents – Police 

Recorded

Reduce the Harm Caused by Alcohol and 

Drugs

Impact of Crime – National Rural Crime 

Survey

Improve Community Safety in Rural Areas

Other Police Recorded Incidents

5

Measuring performance against my first KPQ, ‘How Safe are our Communities?’, looks at everything from incidents to 

response times, comparing these to other parts of the country where it’s possible.

P
age 17



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

6

‘What is happening’ ‘Why it is happening’ ‘What we’re doing’

The offence rate per 1000 population is

higher for Durham than is the case

nationally.

This is driven by changes to recording

connected with violence without injury

offences (e.g. harassment) – and a higher

rate nationally for the North East of recorded

criminal damage offences.

Monitor carefully compliance with crime

recording, and continue to update in

performance reporting.

86% of victims were satisfied with police

arrival time in quarter one 2018/19.

Satisfaction with arrival time has remained

stable, between 82-86% as of Q2 2016-17.

Monitor wider workstreams on victim

satisfaction through victim care group –

continue to report on satisfaction with

arrival time.

Recorded Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB)

incidents have fallen twelve months to

March 2018 by 12%.

Changes to how ASB is recorded. Continuing to monitor how the changes may

have implications for changes in other

recorded offences.

10% of rural residents in Durham feel unsafe

in their homes after dark.

The National Rural Crime Survey showed this

to be similar to the rate nationally (9%).

Continually engage with rural residents,

publish Rural Statement 2018, work with

Rural Affairs Strategic Group

These are the headlines, an explanation where necessary, and what it is we’re going to do about it.

P
age 18



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW)

The Crime Survey for England and Wales asks questions on

risk, the answers to which give an estimated percentage of

adults who have been a victim of either personal crime – e.g.

violence and theft offences – or have been resident in a

household that was a victim of crime – e.g. burglary, theft,

and criminal damage offences.

7

34
Organised Crime Groups (OCGs) 

operating in Durham

P
age 19



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Crime Severity Score – Office for National Statistics (ONS)

Both charts show Durham

compared with England and

Wales for the time period year

ending March 2018. The Crime

Severity Score should be

treated with caution – as it is

still an experimental statistic –

but it tries to measure the

severity of offences based on

sentencing data. This has the

potential to be an important

measure when changes in crime

recording practices can

significantly have an effect on,

for example, the second chart –

the offence rate per 1000

population.

8

Crime Severity Score

P
age 20



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Police Response Times
It is important that when people require a police response,

they are confident that officers will arrive when they need

them. For calls into the control room deemed as requiring an

immediate response, dispatch is to take place within three

minutes, with arrival time targets of up to twenty minutes

depending on the location of the incident.

As well as monitoring this indicator, I am regularly updated

on victim satisfaction with the arrival time of officers. The

pass rate for officer arrival at immediate incidents has

remained consistent over the past quarter, and indeed the

past six months. While satisfaction with arrival time has fallen

when comparing quarter one of 2016-17 with the same

period in 2017-18, results from Q1 of 2018-19 shows that

satisfaction with arrival time appears to have plateaued out.

9

Immediate Incidents Response Pass Rate

January-June 2018

January February March April May June

83% 82% 80% 82% 82% 81%

Satisfaction – Arrival Time

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q1

2018-19

Q1

91% 85% 86%

15,720
No. of ‘Immediate’ Incidents

January-June 2018

P
age 21



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Tackle and Prevent Anti-Social Behaviour

Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) incidents recorded by the police

have fallen due to changes in recording standards. Looking at

the latest release of the Crime Survey for England and Wales

(CSEW), Durham is in a similar position to England and Wales

when it comes to people’s perceptions and experiences of

ASB.

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Apr May Jun

N
o

. 
o

f 
in

ci
d

e
n

ts

Anti-Social Behaviour - Durham Constabulary

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

10

P
age 22



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Tackle and Prevent Anti-Social Behaviour
“Anti-Social Behaviour can have a significant impact upon on

a victim’s quality of life. Increasing the confidence of our

communities around the issue is very important, and we

need to provide reassurance that it is taken seriously.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) is, broadly, recorded by the

police in three categories:

• Nuisance – ASB targeted at a community rather than an

individual

• Personal – ASB targeted at an individual or group

• Environmental – impact on surroundings

Comparing Durham to England and Wales, the proportion of

Environmental ASB is larger for Durham and Nuisance ASB is

smaller, than is the case for both nationally.

11

P
age 23



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

12

12.7

6.7

3.0

10.4

7.9

8.4

6.6
9.7

6.9

6.5
8.4

5.2

Rate of ASB Incidents per 1000 Population

Sector Q1 2018/19 Direction of 

travel*

Bishop Auckland 12.7

Crook 6.7

Barnard Castle 3.0

Darlington 10.4

Newton Aycliffe 7.9

Spennymoor 8.4

Durham 6.6

Peterlee 9.7

Seaham 6.9

Chester-le-Street 6.5

Stanley 8.4

Consett 5.2

*Compared with Q1 2017/18

P
age 24



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Improve Road Safety

“Road safety remains a key concern when I speak to local

people across the Constabulary area…[and] Education is a key

tool in making our roads safer and I will continue to support

awareness raising campaigns to change behaviour.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

Fatal and Serious Casualties – 2018

13

P
age 25



Improve Road Safety
Durham Constabulary Roads Policing Unit support both

national and local road safety campaigns throughout the

year, in addition to their day-to-day roads policing activities.

This quarter’s campaigns have included: speeding,

motorcycle awareness, and – to coincide with the world cup,

a drink drug drive awareness campaign.

Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

14

2017: 182

2018: 271

Number of 

Community 

Speed Watch 

activities/ 

deployments in 

quarter one

APRIL

Speed Campaign

MAY

Motorcycle Action

JUNE

Drink Drug Drive 

Campaign

20871
Number of speeding offences detected across Cleveland and 

Durham, April 2017-March 2018

16
Bikes seized as part of 

Operation Endurance 

(correct, April 2018)

54
Number of additional 

warnings issued (correct, 

April 2018)

3400
Number of tests 

administered across 

campaign

193
Number of drivers charged 

with drink and/or drug 

driving offences or failing to 

provide

P
age 26



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Reduce the Harm Caused by Alcohol and Drugs
Alcohol related incidents are a significant area of demand for

the police, representing 16% of all incidents in quarter one of

2018-19.

15

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Apr May Jun

N
o

. 
o

f 
in

ci
d

e
n

ts

Alcohol Related Incidents - Durham Constabulary

Q1 2016/17 Q1 2017/18 Q1 2018/19

P
age 27



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Improve Community Safety in Rural Areas
“Continue to identify issues facing rural communities, and 

work with partners to address them.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

National Rural Crime Survey
Results from the National Rural Crime Survey 2018 showed

that feelings of safety after dark for those in rural areas of

Durham and Darlington were similar to those on a national

level.

On dealing with fly-tipping and speeding, Durham performed

better than the national average. Still, improving confidence

in these areas can only be achieved through authorities

working in effective partnership.

16

P
age 28



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Other Police Recorded Incidents
Police recorded incidents are events which disturb

quality of life or cause people concern. They’re

dictated by the National Standard for Incident

Recording.

Police recorded incidents include those relating to

transport and missing persons, both of which have

bearing on answering the first KPQ – ‘How Safe are

our Communities?’

Transport related incidents represented 13% of all

incidents recorded by Durham Constabulary in

quarter one of 2018/19.

The number of recorded missing person incidents has

risen by 12% when comparing quarter one of

2017/18 with the same period in 2018/19.

17

P
age 29



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

Public safety incidents recorded by

Durham Constabulary are a significant

area of demand. These are incidents

such as suspicious circumstances or

insecure premises (i.e. where members

of the public have concerns), domestic

incidents (where circumstances don’t

amount to a notifiable crime), and

missing persons (where someone’s

whereabouts are unknown, and their

wellbeing needs to be established).

18

P
age 30



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

“Hold the Police and partners to account to ensure 

that they tackle and prevent crime.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

Key Performance Indicators PCV Priority Links

Victim Based Crime – Police Recorded

All Priorities

Crime – Crime Survey for England and 

Wales

Crime Outcomes – Police Recorded

Crime Prevention Activities – Durham 

Constabulary

19

The second Key Performance Question in my Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan is about preventing and reducing crime. I, 

therefore, look at crime levels, solved rates, and activities by the police to help people stop themselves becoming victims of 

crime. 

P
age 31



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

20

‘What is happening’ ‘Why it is happening’ ‘What we’re doing’

Police recorded Victim Based Crime has risen

year-on-year, rising 32% comparing 2016-17

with 2017-18.

Changes to recording practices in relation to

police recorded crime, more reporting – and,

also, actual rises in some crime categories

such as theft offences (which might also be

witnessed nationally).

Continue to be reassured that the

Constabulary records crimes as it should

through HMICFRS data integrity inspections

and auditing – and continue to be confident

that the Constabulary works to tackle and

prevent crime.

The Crime Survey for England and Wales

shows a 2% increase in violent offences

comparing 2016-17 with 2017-18.

The increase is not statistically significant. Continue to monitor and update on

quarterly CSEW data releases.

Looking at crime outcomes, Durham ‘solved’

25% (5th highest nationally), compared to the

England and Wales figure of 17% for 2017-

18.

A combination of multiple factors. Continue to report on and monitor. Consider

‘solved’ rates for particular offence

categories in future reporting.

These are the headlines, an explanation where necessary, and what it is we’re going to do about it.

P
age 32



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

Levels of Crime
Two sources of crime statistics are the Crime Survey for

England and Wales (CSEW) – which is a large, representative,

survey – and police recorded crime – which are crimes

reported to the police, and recorded in line with national

guidance.

The Crime Survey is helpful inasmuch as it is not affected by

changes to police recording practices. Police recorded crime

can change significantly in line with new guidance.

Illustrating the difference, Violence Against the Person

increased by 19% when considering police recorded crime

data, but violence by 2% looking at CSEW. Both are helpful –

and both have limitations – but together they can go some

way to answering KPQ2.

21

11%
Change in Victim Based Crime 

(England and Wales) twelve months 

to March 2018 against twelve 

months to March 2017 (Police 

Recorded)

19%
Change in Violence Against the 

Person (England and Wales) twelve 

months to March 2018 against 

twelve months to March 2017 

(Police Recorded)

2%
Change in Violence (England and 

Wales) twelve months to March 

2018 against twelve months to 

March 2017 (CSEW)

P
age 33



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

Explaining the trend
The increase in police recorded crime has been driven – in

many cases – by changes to recording standards. Several

types of incident, which previously would not have been

recorded as crimes, now need to be. At the same time, more

crime being reported – and, also, actual rises in some crime

categories such as theft, have also contributed to the rise.

In their 2017 Crime Data Integrity Inspection, Durham

Constabulary was rated ‘Good’ by HMICFRS. Through auditing

the Constabulary continues to work to ensure that crimes are

recorded properly, this being critical in making sure victims of

crime receive support when they need it.

22

P
age 34



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

Police Recorded Crime – Durham Constabulary

The table shows police recorded crime comparing twelve

months to March 2017 with twelve months to March

2018. It shows the increase both in Durham and

nationally of police recorded crime, attributable to

changes in recording standards – and, also, actual rises in

some crime categories such as theft offences (all of

which might be seen on a national level as well).

Data from the Crime Survey for England and Wales

(CSEW) – which is a face-to-face survey of residents

across England and Wales on their experiences of crime

– can provide a consistent, reliable, indicator of crime

levels over time where police recorded data might not.

Accordingly, for violence offences, CSEW shows a 2% rise

(not statistically significant) for England and Wales over

the periods compared in the table; this is compared with

a 19% rise in Violence Against the Person police recorded

offences.

April 16-

March 17

April 17-

March 18

%

difference

(Durham)

%

difference

(England

and Wales)

Violence Against the 

Person

14659 21414 46% 19%

- Violence with Injury 4832 5803 20% 10%

- Violence without 

Injury

9823 15608 59% 24%

Sexual Offences 1332 2031 52% 24%

Theft Offences 16775 19160 14% 7%

Criminal Damage and 

Arson

8503 10181 20% 5%

23

P
age 35



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

Outcomes
Durham Constabulary performs significantly

better than is the case nationally when it

comes to solving crime.

‘Resolved’ outcomes – where a crime has

been solved by the police – for all crimes

were 25% for the period April 2017 to

March 2018 compared with 17% for England

and Wales.

At the same time, I will continue to monitor

crime outcomes inasmuch as, for some

crimes – such as sexual offences – the

proportion of resolved outcomes can be

lower.

24

P
age 36



Outcome 1: Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced

KPQ2: How well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

Crime Prevention
Durham Constabulary has an array of information and advice

on crime prevention on its website. One tool available is the

‘Dot Peen’ Property Marking System. The Constabulary offers

this free service for residents to mark tools, machinery and

more which can then be more easily reunited with owners

should stolen property be recovered by the police.

25

P
age 37



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

“I want to improve the experience of victims and 

witnesses and to ensure that their voices are heard 

throughout the criminal justice process. I also want to 

ensure that support – practical and emotional – is 

available for victims and witnesses to help them cope 

and recover, and that the support is suited to their 

individual needs.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

Key Performance Indicators/Key Areas PCV Plan Priority Links

Victims Supported

Crime Victim Satisfaction – Police 

Recorded

Ensure that victims are supported at all 

stages of the Criminal Justice System

Domestic Abuse Incidents – Police 

Recorded

Domestic Abuse Risk Referrals – Police 

Recorded

Tackle and Prevent Domestic Abuse

and Sexual Violence in all Their Forms

Hate Incidents and Hate Crimes –

Police Recorded

Hate Crime Outcomes – Police 

Recorded

Tackle and Prevent Hate Crime

Rape Scrutiny Panel Report Tackle and Prevent Domestic Abuse

and Sexual Violence in all Their Forms

26

Looking at KPQ3, on victims, I monitor how victims are supported – as well as key crime and incident categories linked to 

some of the priority areas highlighted in my Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan.

P
age 38



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

27

‘What is happening’ ‘Why it is happening’ ‘What we’re doing’

Looking at victims supported by VCAS, there

were 4607 referrals – and 902 people actually

supported across 2017-18.

Move towards outcome-based performance

framework, to be included in future reports.

Workstreams in relation to victim satisfaction

with ‘Follow up’ and ‘Actions Taken’.

Victim Satisfaction in these particular areas

has fallen.

Monitor progress on workstreams through

accountability meetings and, internal, victim

care group.

The number of police recorded domestic

abuse incidents has risen comparing quarter

one of 2016-17 with 2017-18.

Likely, in part, as a result of better use of the

‘domestic abuse’ qualifier by police

communications staff.

Working with the Constabulary through the

Whole Systems Approach – and on initiatives

such as MATAC.

Police recorded hate crime has risen,

comparing quarter one data across 2016-19.
Believed to be because of awareness raising

among staff and better recording.

Monitor recorded hate crime and incidents –

provide updates in future performance

reports.

Rape Scrutiny Panel continues to meet; 2018

report will reflect on 2017 recommendations.

North East Regional VAWG strategy has a

priority to establish such panels.

2018 report will be published on PCVC’s

website and considered in future reports.

These are the headlines, an explanation where necessary, and what it is we’re going to do about it.

P
age 39



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Support for Victims
Research undertaken by the British Crime Survey (now, the

Crime Survey for England and Wales) suggests that 80% of

individuals who are victims of crime do not want support.*

Of the 20% who do want support, then, having a service and

specialised services to help victims cope and begin to recover

is vital. All victims of crime who need support should receive

it.

Supporting victims to cope and recover is a job for wider

partners as well as the police. But the role of the police in

engaging with victims, making suitable referrals, and being

accessible, are all critical. They are important if victims are to

cope and begin to recover in the aftermath of crime, and if

they are to begin to engage with the wider Criminal Justice

System.

28
*See, M. Callanan et al., ‘Evidence and Practice Review of Support for Victims and 

Outcome Measurement’, Ministry of Justice, November 2012.

P
age 40



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Victim Care and Advice Service (VCAS)
VCAS is commissioned by the PCVC for Durham and the PCC

for Cleveland. It, alongside other – more specialised –

services supports victims to cope and recover. Across 2017-

18 4607 referrals were made to VCAS of which 902 victims

actually took up an offer of support.

Rape and Sexual Abuse 

Counselling Centre (RSACC)
RSACC is a charity which provides

free and confidential counselling

and advice for women and girls

who have been raped, sexually

abused, or have suffered

domestic abuse. Across 2017-18,

RSACC received 364 referrals and

supported 656 clients.

Sexual Assault Referral 

Centre (SARC)
The SARC offers forensic medical

examination, advice, support,

counselling and sexual health

screening for people in County

Durham and Darlington who have

experienced rape or sexual

assault. Across 2017-18, there

were 681 attendees of the

centre.

29

P
age 41



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Restorative Justice
The Restorative Hub is an organisation that works with

victims and offenders through restorative justice. The Hub

employs staff and delivers specialist training to volunteers. It

supports victims by giving them the chance to communicate

with the offender (and with a facilitator present) in the

aftermath of a crime. This allows victims to have a voice in

the criminal justice process and offers them a chance to get

the answers or explanation they deserve. The graph shows

the number of referrals over the past couple of years.

30

P
age 42



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Victim Satisfaction
Victim satisfaction as recorded by Durham Constabulary has

fallen recently in the areas of ‘Actions Taken’ and ‘Follow Up’.

The Constabulary has begun to implement an action plan,

which includes work to raise staff awareness through training

for all frontline officers and input for probationers; IT fixes

where they are needed; and identifying gaps in the provision

of victim services. And while too soon to see the impact work

in the action plan is having, this will be updated in future

reports.

31

Satisfaction – Whole Experience

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q1

2018-19

Q1

90% 85% 84%

Satisfaction – Actions Taken

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q1

2018-19

Q1

87% 83% 75%

Satisfaction – Follow Up

2016-17

Q1

2017-18

Q1

2018-19

Q1

84% 71% 71%

P
age 43



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Domestic Abuse Incidents
The graph top opposite shows the number of police recorded

domestic abuse incidents. The number of recorded incidents

has risen by 24% when comparing quarter one of 2016/17

with quarter one of 2017/18.

Domestic Abuse Risk Referral Forms
The graph bottom opposite shows the percentage

breakdown of the level of risk attached to domestic abuse

referral forms filled in by officers upon attending a domestic

abuse incident. It shows that – recently – the level of

‘standard’ risk has fallen, and that ‘medium’ risk has risen.

32

Tackling and preventing domestic abuse is a priority for me. My office works with the Constabulary on this through ‘The

Whole Systems Approach’ – a collaborative project across six police force areas, and one that seeks to transform domestic

abuse services, deliver lasting change, positive outcomes for victims, and meaningful consequences for perpetrators. Being a

priority, and because of my office’s involvement, I closely monitor (among other measures) the two indicators below.

P
age 44



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Police Recorded Hate Crime
Hate crimes and incidents are those perceived, by the victim

or any other person, to be motivated by hostility or prejudice

based on a personal characteristic such as race, religion,

disability, sexual orientation, gender, gender reassignment,

age or any other particular characteristic. They are harmful

not only to individual victims but can also affect families and

entire communities.

Police recorded hate crimes and incidents have risen in

Durham comparing the past few first quarters. This is

believed to be because of work done by the police to better

record hate crimes and incidents with the appropriate

qualifier – and work with call handlers to raise awareness of

considering ‘hate’ when answering calls.

33

P
age 45



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Hate Crime Strands
The charts below show the breakdown of different hate

crime strands, comparing Durham with the average for

England and Wales. It shows that, overall, the proportion of

race hate strands is smaller for Durham, with hate associated

with sexual orientation and disability being slightly larger.
Hate Crime Advocacy Service (HCAS)

The Hate Crime Advocacy Service works directly with victims

and witnesses of hate crimes and incidents to help them

through the process of prosecution. It can also help them to

cope with the crime to which they have been subjected.

34

P
age 46



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ3: How well are Victims Supported to Cope and Recover, and Engage in Criminal 

Justice Processes?

Rape Scrutiny Panel
The North East Regional Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) strategy

has a priority to establish scrutiny panels which consider a selection of cases

where prosecutions either did not happen, or failed in court.

The Panel in Durham meets throughout the year and publishes an annual

report. These reports are published on the PCVC’s website – and the latest

report can be accessed through clicking on the image opposite.

The 2017 report highlighted both points of good practice and made seventeen

recommendations. The recommendations made in the report are monitored

by the Panel, and members request regular updates throughout the year. The

2018 report will give an update as to progress made against recommendations

and this performance report will highlight these in the future.

35

P
age 47



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ4: How well are Vulnerable People Supported?

“I will continue to work with partners to support

vulnerable people, so that they do not become victims

of crime and anti-social behaviour.”

Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan, 2018-2021

Key Performance Indicators/Key Areas PCV Plan Priority Links

Mental Health Incidents – Police 

Recorded

Suicides

Safeguard Vulnerable People

Street Triage Team

Community Peer Mentors

Vulnerability Intervention Pathway 

(VIP)

36

Key Performance Question 4 on support for people who are vulnerable looks at some of the demand the police face, as well

as initiatives being driven by the police, and work being progressed through partnerships.

P
age 48



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ4: How well are Vulnerable People Supported?

37

‘What is happening’ ‘Why it is happening’ ‘What we’re doing’

The number of recorded mental health

incidents by Durham Constabulary has

increased.

Increased police staff awareness, increased

public awareness, rise in demand.

Working with partners in health through the

Street Triage Team initiative.

The Street Triage Team supported 34% of

mental health-related calls in quarter one

2018-19.

The Joint Hate Crime Action Group has

developed an action plan to be implemented

over the next year.

Work planned as a consequence of the Hate

Crime Conference held in July.

Working through the plan; updating on

progress in a future performance report.

265 people are now trained as Community

Peer Mentors.
Continuing to train Peer Mentors – and

monitor progress of the project.

These are the headlines, an explanation where necessary, and what it is we’re going to do about it.

P
age 49



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ4: How well are Vulnerable People Supported?

Mental Health Incidents & Suicides
The number of mental health incidents recorded by the

police has increased significantly, comparing quarters one of

2016/17 and 2018/19. Reasons which relate to the increase

on the police side of things include work by the Constabulary

to improve staff understanding of mental ill-health as well as

a more general raised public awareness. There has also been

a genuine rise in demand, likely partly as a consequence of

reduced capacity in other emergency services. Partners other

than the police naturally play a critical role particularly with

regard to preventative work in relation to mental ill-health.

Data published by the ONS shows that the number of

recorded suicides fell slightly between 2015 and 2017 both

nationally and across Durham and Darlington.

38

2015 2016 2017

% change

(between 

2015 and 

2017)

England 4820 4575 4451 -8%

County Durham and 

Darlington

73 62 69 -5%

P
age 50



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ4: How well are Vulnerable People Supported?

Street Triage Team
The Street Triage Team provides a service to assist Durham

Constabulary call-handlers with their decision-making if they

have concerns regarding someone’s mental health.

Joint Hate Crime Action Group
Following the recent Hate Crime conference, the Joint Hate

Crime Action Group – made up of multiple agencies – has

developed an action plan to be implemented over the next

year.

39

Supporting people who are vulnerable across County Durham and Darlington is best done in partnership. That’s why the

Constabulary and my office works with partners to tackle issues ranging from mental ill-health, hate crime, drugs and alcohol,

and in relation to areas of deprivation.

34%
The average of mental health-

related calls supported by the Street 

Triage Team – mental health nurses 

co-located within the Constabulary 

(Q1 2018-19)

P
age 51



Outcome 2: Victims and the Vulnerable Feel Supported

KPQ4: How well are Vulnerable People Supported?

Vulnerability Intervention Pathway (VIP)
The VIP Navigator Service works with adults with particular

needs that require multi-agency support. The initiative is

council-led and police representatives work with partners,

including on the VIP Programme Board and Tactical Group.

Community Peer Mentors
Community Peer Mentors is a project which aims to reduce

the pressure on frontline emergency services by engaging with

and supporting people who feel they are vulnerable owing to

ASB, neighbour disputes, or crime. It engages with those who

make frequent calls, helping reduce the severity and/or

frequency of these calls. As a project it is now active across the

whole of Durham Constabulary with area coordinators in

place.

40

265
Number of people trained as 

Community Peer Mentors as of 

August 2018

Here are some of the initiatives that both Durham Police and I have been a part of to help support people who may feel

vulnerable.

P
age 52



Quarterly Performance Report
Office of the Durham Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

41

Glossary (1/2)

Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) any aggressive, intimidating or destructive activity that damages or destroys another person’s quality of life

ASB Environmental the interface between people and places; incidents where individuals and groups have an impact on their

surroundings including natural, built and social environments

ASB Nuisance incidents where an act, condition, thing or person causes trouble, annoyance, inconvenience, offence or

suffering to the local community in general rather than to individual victims – interfering with public

interests including health, safety and quality of life

ASB Personal incidents that the caller, call-handler or anyone else perceives as either deliberately targeted at an

individual or group or having an impact or an individual or group, or having an impact on an individual or

group rather than the community at large

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 

Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 

Services (HMICFRS)

the body responsible for inspecting police forces

Most Similar Groups (MSGs) groups of police force areas that have been found to be the most similar to each other based on analysis of 

characteristics linked to crime

National Crime Recording 

Standards (NCRS)

standards for recording crime in accordance with the law

P
age 53



Quarterly Performance Report
Office of the Durham Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

42

Glossary (2/2)

National Rural Crime Network 

(NRCN)

a collaboration of Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs), the police, and other organisations who work to 

see greater recognition and understanding of the issues rural communities face

Office for National Statistics

(ONS)

the Office for National Statistics is an independent producer of UK official statistics

Key Performance Indicator (KPI) a measure used to evaluate the success of something

Key Performance Question 

(KPQ)

the questions which KPIs help to answer

Victim Based Crime offences with a specific identifiable victim

P
age 54



Page 1 of 12

Item No. XX

Police and Crime Panel

22 October 2018

Focused Report on Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan Outcomes
Outcome 1: ‘Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced’

Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

Purpose

1. To supplement the public performance report with regard to giving an overview of Police, Crime and Victims’ 
Plan Outcome 1 – ‘Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced’.

Background

2. Each meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will receive a focused report on a single outcome from the Police, 
Crime and Victims’ Plan. The Plan can be accessed via the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner’s website 
(www.durham-pcc.gov.uk) – and a summary diagram illustrating the relationship between outcomes, key 
performance questions (KPQs) and priorities can be found in appendix 1 of this document. 

3. This report considers Outcome 1 – under which sit the KPQs:
 How Safe are our Communities? (KPQ1); and
 How Well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime? (KPQ2)

4. Putting this report into some wider context, in their most recent inspections, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) have rated Durham Constabulary as ‘Outstanding’ for 
Effectiveness (the only force in 2017), ‘Outstanding’ for Efficiency (one of two forces in 2017), and ‘Good’ for 
Legitimacy (only one force in the country was judged ‘Outstanding’). And looking at the Crime Survey for 
England and Wales (CSEW), Durham is ranked in the top quartile nationally for both Confidence and for 
Community Understanding.

KPQ1: How Safe are our Communities?

5. To begin to answer the question necessitates, firstly, understanding its meaning. ‘How safe are our 
communities?’ is, therefore, about the difference that the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims’ 
Commissioner, Durham Constabulary, and partners intend to make in relation both to making communities 
safe, and to making them feel safe. Considering the question demands examination of incidents that impact 
on how safe communities are – and also requires taking note of some of the various initiatives aimed at 
improving community safety.

6. The Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) is a large, representative, survey on experiences of crime. 
When the survey is run, one of the questions asked concerns risk. Answers to these questions give an 
estimated percentage of adults who have been a victim either of personal crime – e.g. violence and theft from 
person offences – or have been resident in a household that has been a victim of crime – e.g. burglary, theft 
and criminal damage offences.

Page 55

Agenda Item 8

http://www.durham-pcc.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 12

Source: Office for National Statistics, Crime Survey for England and Wales

7. On risk, then, the above charts show that Durham’s position is broadly commensurate with that for England 
and Wales, once confidence intervals are taken into consideration.

8. Two other indicators which give a top-level view of community safety include the Crime Severity Score and 
the offence rate per 1000 population.

9. The Crime Severity Score (CSS) is an interesting measure of the severity of offences. It does this through using 
sentencing information to ‘weight’ the severity of offences. Such a statistic is helpful when changes to 
recording practices for crime can significantly have an effect upon police recorded offences.

 
Source: Office for National Statistics, Crime Survey for England and Wales

10. This chart shows the CSS for Durham compared with England and Wales to year ending March 2018. It shows 
the score for Durham about the same level as for England and Wales.

11. The offence rate per 1000 population is a helpful measure because it allows one to compare Durham’s position 
to that of England and Wales more easily that looking at pure numbers as it accounts for differences in 
population size.

Page 56



Page 3 of 12

Source: Office for National Statistics, Crime Survey for England and Wales

12. The police recorded offence rate for Durham is slightly higher for Durham than it is for England and Wales as 
an average. This is, substantively, because of two factors – firstly, recording changes have affected police 
recorded ‘Violence without Injury’ (a crime category that covers offences such as harassment). Indeed, in its 
last Crime Data Integrity inspection, HMICFRS noted that the Constabulary is “Good” at recording crime 
properly and accurately. Durham is one of only a handful of forces to be rated “Good”. Secondly, the North 
East as a whole witnesses higher levels of recorded ‘Criminal Damage and Arson’ and has done so over time. 
At the same time, looking again at recent HMICFRS inspections, when the Inspectorate last considered 
Durham’s approach to tackling crime, the culture of problem-solving, its approach to serious and organised 
crime, and work to prevent crime, were all commended.

13. On response times, it is important that when people require a police response, they are confident that officers 
will arrive when they need them. For calls into the control room deemed as requiring an immediate response, 
dispatch is to take place within three minutes, with arrival time targets of up to twenty minutes depending on 
the location of the incident.

Source: Durham Constabulary Management Information System

Page 57



Page 4 of 12

14. The graph above shows that the victim satisfaction for police arrival time has remained consistent over a 
prolonged period of time. HMICFRS talk in their 2017 Efficiency report about how Durham uses THRIVE1 to 
prioritise demand efficiently. And at the same time, victim satisfaction with the arrival time of officers has 
remained consistently between 82 and 85% over 2017-18.

15. Other non-crime demand is important in considering this question on safety as a significant amount of police 
officer and staff time concerns incidents which may not be criminal. Looking at this involves considering police 
recorded incidents which are governed by the National Standard for Incident Recording. Examples of such 
incidents include: anti-social behaviour, suspicious circumstances or insecure premises, domestic incidents, 
and missing persons. It is also helpful to understand the number of incidents the police face which involve 
alcohol in one way or another.

16. Police recorded public safety and welfare incidents include suspicious circumstances or insecure premises, 
domestic incidents, and missing persons. Taken together they make up a large portion of the calls the Force 
Control Room receives. Innovation and work around these areas by the Constabulary and the PCVC’s office 
has included the Herbert and Philomena protocols, a continued commitment to neighbourhood policing, and 
working regionally on domestic abuse through the Whole Systems Approach.

Source: Durham Constabulary Management Information System

17. Police recorded Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) incidents have fallen year-on-year, as has the proportion of all 
incidents which are ASB incidents, as can be seen in the graph above. Reasons for this lie in changes to crime 
recording, where some incidents formerly recorded as an ASB incident now of necessity may be recorded as 
a crime – for example, harassment.

1 A risk assessment tool which is based on threat, harm, investigative opportunities, vulnerability of those involved, and 
opportunities to engage.

Page 58



Page 5 of 12

Source: Durham Constabulary Management Information System

18. The graph and chart immediately above show police recorded incidents where someone has identified alcohol 
as playing a part in one way or another. As can be seen from the second image (the chart), recently, about 
16% of police recorded incidents have been tagged with an alcohol qualifier. Through a variety of means 
including working with partners, the Offender Management Unit, the Checkpoint scheme, the Harm Reduction 
Unit, and demand management, the Constabulary works to reduce the harm caused by alcohol and drugs.

Source: Durham Constabulary Management Information System

19. Concerning road safety the below graph shows the number of casualties since 2005, and up to 2017, which 
were slight, serious or fatal.

Source: Gateshead Council Road Safety Resource

20. The above graph shows, then, that the total number of casualties in 2017 in Durham stood at 1526 – slightly 
higher than was the case for 2016, but lower than the average between 2010 and 2014. Moreover, despite 
the slight increase, the numbers over the long term are among the lowest since 1979. Putting this into further 
context, the Roads Policing Unit of Durham Constabulary engages in a calendar of campaigns throughout the 
year raising awareness and undertaking enforcement around the ‘Fatal Four’ among other things. Community 
Speed Watch and partnership work through the Road Safety Partnership are two other ways safety on the 
roads is promoted.

21. The National Rural Crime Survey for 2018 received over 500 responses for Durham’s force area. Some of the 
questions asked of Durham residents are particularly pertinent to questions of community safety.

Page 59



Page 6 of 12

 
Source: National Rural Crime Survey 2018

22. The two charts above show how respondents to the 2018 survey felt about the kind of job the police do in 
rural areas, and how safe respondents felt in their homes after dark. On the former, Durham scored better 
than the national average, and on the latter was broadly in line with what appears to be the case across 
England and Wales. Significant parts of Durham and Darlington are rural – and the Constabulary and PCVC’s 
office engages with all communities, including rural ones, through PACT and AAP meetings, attending the rural 
shows, and Community Speed Watch. Collaboratively working with specific rural business owners through 
Farmwatch is also another specific example.

KPQ2: How Well are we Preventing and Reducing Crime?

23. Answering KPQ2 requires an understanding and appreciation of the two primary sources of crime data – the 
Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW) and police recorded crime. The question also asks of the nature 
of crime prevention work the police and partners engage in – and how good the Constabulary is at solving 
crime.

24. To begin with, looking at crime over the long term – CSEW shows that, nationally, crime has fallen over the 
past two decades (NB. CSEW has not traditionally included some crime types, for example, fraud and 
cybercrime).

Source: Office for National Statistics, Crime Survey for England and Wales

Page 60



Page 7 of 12

25. Considering CSEW when looking at long term crime data is better than relying on police recorded crimes 
because of its consistent methodology over time and because it is not affected by changes in police practice 
of recording crimes. Examining the past couple of years, CSEW data shows that over recent decades there has 
been a fall in overall levels of crime which now looks to be, generally, stabilising. Police recorded crime data 
over this period has shown an increase recently, driven by some factors which are explored below.

26. Having looked at the national picture from both the perspective of CSEW and police recorded data, it is 
appropriate to consider Durham. Police recorded crime in Durham has risen over the past few years in line 
with the national picture. The reasons for this include changes to National Crime Recording Standards, 
improved recording, increased confidence in Durham Constabulary leading to more frequent reporting, and 
increase in some crime types (e.g. acquisitive crime).

Source: Durham Constabulary Management Information System

27. As stated, one of the major reasons for recorded crime having risen is changes to National Crime Recording 
Standards – harassment, which is a ‘Victim Based Crime’, and sits under the category of ‘Violence without 
Injury’, has been subject to changes in recording. This has manifested itself as an increase in the figures relating 
to violent crime – an increase which many other forces have also seen.

28. As noted in the Crime Survey for England and Wales’s latest release, “For some crimes, police recorded data 
show an increase in the number of recorded offences, but this is unlikely to indicate a real rise in the amount 
of crime occurring”.2 One of the particular categories highlighted here is the previously mentioned ‘Violence 
without Injury’.

2 ‘Crime in England and Wales: Year Ending March 2018’, Crime Survey for England and Wales, 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingmarc
h2018, July 2018 (accessed: October 2018). 

Page 61

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2018
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2018


Page 8 of 12

Source: Durham Constabulary Management Information System

29. The other drivers of increases in recorded crime include increased confidence to report crime. Durham 
Constabulary has worked consistently to maintain and improve its understanding of community concerns. This 
is of critical import inasmuch as community understanding contributes significantly to local confidence in 
policing. Durham has consistently ranked in the top quartile, nationally, for Community Understanding over 
the past several years.

Source: Office for National Statistics, Crime Survey for England and Wales, and Durham Constabulary 
Management Information System

30. Where increases in police recorded crime might be reflective of actual increases in crime, particular categories 
such as arson, vehicle offences, shoplifting, and burglary, can be indicative of this. At the same time, it can be 
determined through comparisons with the national picture that forces up and down the country also face 
these challenges – and that Durham Constabulary consistently and effectively plans and responds to changes 
in crime trends.

Page 62



Page 9 of 12

31. Durham Constabulary performs significantly better than is the case nationally when it comes to solving crime. 
Solved outcomes – where a crime has been solved by the police – for all crimes were 25% for the period April 
2017 to March 2018 compared with 17% for England and Wales.

Source: Home Office

32. On a wider point around crime prevention, Durham Constabulary is committed to keeping County Durham 
and Darlington safe for residents, businesses, students and visitors alike. A large part of this centres around 
the work of Durham’s neighbourhood policing teams who are always out and about in their local areas, helping 
to promote public safety. In addition, the Constabulary’s crime prevention officers offer specific advice about 
particular crimes – as well as how individuals and households can help to prevent crime through keeping their 
valuables and homes secure. More information can be found on Durham Constabulary’s website 
(www.durham.police.uk/Information-and-advice/).

33. A more specific crime prevention tool at the hands of the Constabulary is the ‘Dot Peen’ Property Marking 
System. Secured with funding from the PCVC, the device allows the Constabulary to offer a free service for 
residents to be able to mark tools, machinery and more which can then be more easily reunited with owners 
should stolen property be recovered by the police.

Conclusions

34. Taking all of the above into consideration, concluding with a reflection on the latest reports published by 
HMICFRS is helpful. In their 2017 Efficiency inspection, on the question ‘How efficient is the force at keeping 
people safe and reducing crime?’, the Inspectorate noted:

“Durham Constabulary is judged to be outstanding in the efficiency with which it keeps people safe and reduces 
crime. Our overall judgment this year is the same as last year. The constabulary is judged to be outstanding in 
its understanding of demand; its use of resources to manage demand is judged to be outstanding; and its 
planning for future demand is also assessed to be outstanding.”

35. In 2017 Durham was one of only two forces in the country to be judged overall as ‘Outstanding’ in Efficiency.

Page 63

http://www.durham.police.uk/Information-and-advice/


Page 10 of 12

Recommendation

36. That the Panel note the contents of the report and seek any relevant points of clarification.

Ron Hogg

Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

Page 64



Page 11 of 12

Appendix 1: Outcomes, Key Performance Questions, and Priorities

Outcome 1

KPQ1 KPQ2

Outcome 2

KPQ3 KPQ4

Outcome 3

KPQ5 KPQ6

Outcome 4

KPQ7 KPQ8

12 Priorities – Cross Cutting

P
age 65



Page 12 of 12

Appendix 2: Risks and Implications

Finance

N/A

Staffing

N/A

Equality and Diversity

N/A

Accommodation

N/A

Crime and Disorder

N/A

Children’s Act 2004

N/A

Stakeholder/Community Engagement

N/A

Environment

N/A

Collaboration and Partnerships

N/A

Value for Money and Productivity

N/A

Potential Impact on Police and Crime Plan Priorities

Highlights performance in relation to Outcome 1 of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan.

Commissioning

N/A

Other Risks

N/A

Contact Officer: Jacob Cain
Job Title: Policy and Accountability Officer
Telephone: 0191 375 2164
Email: jacob.cain@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 

Page 66

mailto:jacob.cain@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


1

Police and Crime Panel

 22nd October 2018

Commissioning Update

Report of Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner 

Purpose

1. To take Panel Members through the revised commissioning process and share 
confirmed funding decisions relating to the financial year 2019/20. 

Background

2. At the Panel meeting in June, a paper was presented advising of the new 
Commissioning Strategy, which sets out our approach to commissioning.

3. That process is now well underway. Existing and new funding proposals were 
presented by the OPCVC policy leads at the first OPCVC Commissioning Board in July, 
with recommendations to accept, reject or require further work to be done for each 
proposal.

4. The total value of funding decisions to be taken at the OPCVC Commissioning Board is 
around £2m At the July and October Boards £1.6m of funding decisions were 
confirmed as accepted and a further £0.6m required further work. The value of 
proposals exceeded the available funding.

5. Confirmed funding decisions (with the specific amounts to be finalised) include:

a. Contribution to the PCVC Community Safety Fund, which enters the final year 
of the contract extension in 2019/20;

b. Contribution to the Community Peer Mentors project;

c. Contribution to the Check Point project;

d. Support for victims of domestic abuse;

e. Support for victims of sexual violence;

f. Contributions to Youth Offending Services;

g. Final year of the victim needs and referral service, which will be subject of a 
procurement exercise in 2019/20 for service delivery from 1st April 2020;

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



2

h. Shared funding contribution for a community safety partnership activity.

6. Further work was required for:

a. Contributions to restorative approach activities within the community and the 
criminal justice system;

b. Contribution to anti-social behaviour services;

c. A range of community safety, reducing reoffending and victim service 
proposals.

Recommendation

7. To consider the report and provide any comments and questions.

Charles Oakley
Head of Governance & Commissioning

Page 68



3

Appendix 1:  Risks and Implications

Finance
All funding decisions will be included in the 2019/20 financial planning process.

Staffing
n/a

Equality and Diversity
n/a

Accommodation
n/a

Crime and Disorder
Many of the projects are aimed at reducing crime and disorder.

Children’s Act 2004
n/a

Stakeholder/Community Engagement
Information about the PCVC’s funding streams is set out in the Police, Crime and Victims’ Plan.

Environment
n/a

Collaboration and Partnerships
n/a

Value for Money and Productivity
Value for Money is a key consideration in the allocation of all funding.

Potential Impact on Police and Crime Plan Priorities
All funding is expected to have a positive impact on priorities.

Commissioning
As per the report.

Other risks
n/a

Contact Officer: Charles Oakley
Job Title: Head of Governance & Commissioning
Telephone: 0191 375 2150
Email: charles.oakley@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 

Page 69

mailto:charles.oakley@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



                  

Durham Police and Crime Panel

22 October 2018

Appointment of Independent Co-
opted Members

Joint Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation 
and Partnerships, and Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services

Purpose of the Report

1 The purpose of the report is to seek approval on the appointment of two 
independent co-opted Members to the Panel. 

Background

2 There is requirement under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011 for the Panel to have two non-political independent members. The 
appointment of the two independent members provides the opportunity for the 
Panel, by carefully selecting individuals to complement the councillors 
nominated to the Panel, to satisfy the’ balanced appointment objective’. This 
requires the panel to have a membership, which when considered collectively, 
would be geographically and politically representative, and include the 
necessary experience, knowledge and skills to be effective.

3 Independent co-optees are full voting members of the Panel, and therefore 
have the same responsibilities and duties, and access to the same level of 
support as elected members on the Panel.

4 Following an advertisement in the press inviting applications, prospective 
candidates were interviewed, and two co-opted Members were appointed. 
Constituent authorities agreed that Mr N J H Cooke, and Mr D K G Dodwell 
would be appointed for a period from 1 November 2014 to 30 April 2017. At 
the Panel meeting in January 2017 where it was agreed to extend their term 
of office until 30 April 2019, it was also agreed that from 1 May 2019 one 
independent co-opted member be appointed for a period of two years and one 
independent co-opted member be appointed for a period of four years, which 
had been suggested would provide for continuity on the Panel.

5 Since that time and as a result of changes arising following local elections the 
membership of the Panel has changed significantly, and it is for the new 
Panel to determine the position going forward. There are a number of options 
open for the Panel to consider which include:-

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



(i) to extend the contracts of the two members for a further period. The 
Panel would then need to determine the length of term of office, and 
whether the two appointments be for the same period or staggered. If 
the appointments were staggered it would be for the panel to determine 
the individual appointments. There is nothing in the Panel 
arrangements or guidance to indicate that existing members could not 
be re-appointed.

(ii) to place an advertisement in the local press to seek new applications. 
The Panel would then need to determine the length of term of office, 
and whether the two appointments be for the same period or 
staggered. 

6 If the Panel was minded to seek new applications the process would need to 
meet the following requirements, which are set out in the panel 
arrangements:-

 The selection process should include a reasonable period of 
advertising for the positions, with a closing date of at least 2 weeks’ 
notice from date the advertisement was first placed.

 Information packs be prepared and sent to those requesting 
application forms.

 The applications will be considered against agreed eligibility criteria 
written to achieve the balanced appointment objective. 

 Any Appointment Panel agreed by the Panel to make the appointment 
would comprise at least one member of each of the constituent 
authorities.

 Following the interviews, the Chairman and Vice- Chairman will make 
recommendations to the Panel about membership.

Term of Office

7 It is suggested that the term of office for any re-appointments or new 
appointments be for a four year term expiring on 30 April 2023. From that 
date, it is suggested that further appointments be made to the Panel every 
four years. At the end of a term, the Panel may decide whether to extend the 
appointment of existing Independent Persons or conduct a further recruitment 
exercise. This would mean any changes to the co-opted members’ 
appointments from April 2023 onwards would fall into a cycle of being mid-
term and therefore unaffected by any changes to the Panel following local 
elections for the County Council. This would provide the Panel with greater 
continuity.  

Page 72



Recommendation

8 The Panel either:-

(i) Extend the appointment of the two independent co-opted Members to 
the Panel, and if so, determine the period of extension, with a 
suggestion that this expire on 30 April 2023, following which new 
appointments be made to the Panel on a four yearly basis. 

OR:-

(ii)   Agree to make two new appointments to the Panel for a period until 30 
April 2023, following which new appointments be made to the Panel on 
a four yearly basis. The requirements for appointment be as set out in 
paragraph 6 above together with:-

  appointing a selection panel comprising of 5 members, which would 
comprise of at least one member from each constituent authority, and 
one member as a reserve; 

  delegated authority be given to the Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships, and Head of Legal and Democratic Services in 
consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Panel to 
agree the advertising arrangements, eligibility criteria, and drawing up 
a short-list of candidates;

  following interview the Chairman and Vice- Chairman would make 
recommendations for appointment to the Police and Crime Panel.

Contact: Ros Layfield Tel: 03000 269 708
                     Jonathan Slee Tel: 03000 268 142

Page 73



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance – Costs associated with undertaking potential recruitment exercise.

Staffing – None specific in this report

Risk – None specific in this report

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – Potential recruitment 
process to be carried out in accordance with the Council’s recruitment procedure.

Accommodation - None specific in this report

Crime and Disorder - None specific in this report

Human Rights - None specific in this report

Consultation – None specific in this report

Procurement - None specific in this report

Disability Issues – Potential Recruitment process to be carried out in accordance 
with the Council’s recruitment procedure.

Legal Implications – As set out at paragraph 2 of the report, the Police Reform and 
Social Responsibility Act 2011 requires the Panel to appoint two non-political 
independent members.

Page 74



1

Police and Crime Panel

 22nd October 2018

PCVC Decision Records

Report of Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner 

Purpose

1. To update Panel Members on the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner’s decision 
register since the last meeting, and forward plan. 

Background

Decision Making Process

2. Key decisions are made at an Executive Board comprising the PCVC, the PCVC’s Chief 
of Staff, the Chief Constable and the Joint Chief Finance Officer.  Other officers of the 
PCVC or the Chief Constable will attend as and when required. On occasion it is 
necessary to take decisions outside of this process for reasons of expediency, but all 
relevant parties are consulted and informed.

3. All key decisions are supported by a report setting out the decision required, all 
relevant factors to be considered, the outcome of any consultation undertaken and 
the risks and implications of the course of action being recommended. 

4. An online record is maintained of all key decisions taken by the OPCVC.  This includes 
a link to any documents which are disclosable under FOI.  This record includes 
decisions taken by the PCC or any person to whom delegated powers have been 
granted.  

5. The PCVC will consider holding public meetings when this will provide a means of 
consultation on decisions (i.e. precept consultation) where there is a clear interest in 
actively seeking views of the community.

6. The PCVC may choose to delegate powers to any deputy appointed, his statutory 
officers or a senior member of police staff.  

7. A record is kept of all decisions made under delegated powers detailing the factors 
taken into consideration, including any consultation carried out.

8. Decisions to be made by the PCVC will relate in the main to his statutory functions and 
financial responsibilities.  A Forward Plan for key decisions to be taken over a 3 month 
period will be published on the PCVC’s website.

Page 75

Agenda Item 11



2

9. Generally Key decisions are likely to include:

 The preparation, drafting and issuing of the Police and Crime Plan
 Issuing the precept
 Adopting a Medium Term Financial Plan
 Commissioning of Services
 Preparation and issue of the Annual Report
 Any decision which is considered to be of significant public interest or impact 

either generally or on a particular locality
 Any decision which will incur revenue expenditure in excess of £100,000
 Any decision which will incur capital expenditure in excess of £100,000
 The approval of or adoption of strategies/policies
 Key procurement decisions
 Significant changes to the police estate
 Allocation of grants

10. Details of the Police Crime and Victims’ Commissioner’s Decision Register 2018 can be 
found in Appendix 2.

Recommendation

11. That Panel Members note the contents of the report and ask any questions.

Charles Oakley
Head of Governance & Commissioning

Page 76



3

Appendix 1:  Risks and Implications

Finance
All decisions with financial implications are made with value for money as a key 
consideration, and are affordable within budgets.

Staffing
n/a

Equality and Diversity
n/a

Accommodation
n/a

Crime and Disorder
n/a

Children’s Act 2004
n/a

Stakeholder/Community Engagement
Consultation with key stakeholders is carried out as appropriate to each decision.

Environment
n/a

Collaboration and Partnerships
Consultation with key partners is carried out as appropriate to each decision.

Value for Money and Productivity
n/a

Potential Impact on Police and Crime Plan Priorities
Decisions will impact directly or indirectly on the pursuit of Police and Crime Plan priorities.

Commissioning
Several decisions relate to commissioning of services.

Other risks
n/a

Contact Officer: Charles Oakley
Job Title: Head of Governance & Commissioning
Telephone: 0191 3752150
Email: charles.oakley@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk

Page 77

mailto:charles.oakley@durham.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


4

Appendix 2
Key Decisions

(Links to more detailed reports are available on the website)

Decision 
Number

Decision Taker Subject

019/2018 PCVC The PCVC to support Aspire and Derwentside MIND from the 
police transformation monies. (£9,600)

020/2018 PCVC The PCVC has agreed to contribute £15,000 towards the 
Darlington Partnership

021/2018 Procurement 
Exercise

HALO were awarded the contract to support victims of female 
genital mutilation, honour based violence and forced marriage, 
following a competitive procurement exercise.

022/2018 PCVC The PCVC has agreed to fund court based support to victims of 
domestic abuse by an Independent Domestic Violence Advocate 
(£30,000)

023/2018 PCVC The PCVC to contribute towards Junior Road Safety Officer 
programme. (£1,100)

024/2018 PCVC The PCVC agreed to sign a contract with the Ministry of Interior in 
Bahrain to deliver training in forensics

025/2018 PCC & CC 
Durham, 
Cleveland & 
North Yorkshire

The collaboration of PCCs and CCs of Durham, Cleveland and North 
Yorkshire have agreed to develop collaborative legal services 
across the six corporations sole. This will reduce costs to the public 
purse by making specialist skills available across several forces. 

Upcoming key decisions

 Commissioning and grant funding for 2019-20 (October to December 2018)

Page 78



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2018
	5 Recent Media Activity - Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner
	7 2018/19 Quarter 1 Performance Report - Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner
	Q1 Performance Report.pptx [Read-Only]

	8 Focused Report on Police, Crime and Victims' Plan Outcomes - Outcome 1: 'Communities are Safe and Crime is Reduced - Report of the Office of the Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner
	9 Commissioning Update - Report of Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner
	10 Appointment of Independent Co-opted Members - Joint Report of Lorraine O'Donnell, Director of Transformation and Partnerships and Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Durham County Council
	11 PCVC Decision Records - Report of Police, Crime and Victims' Commissioner
	14 Concerning a complaint about the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner - Report of Monitoring Officer, Durham County Council

